w

o 0O

m

N
S WYTREVI

AGENDA
Wytheville Town Council
Monday, June 14, 2010
7:00 P.M.
Wytheville Municipal Building
150 East Monroe Street
Wytheville, Virginia 24382

——

INVOCATION—COUNCILMAN H. JUDSON LAMBERT

CALL TO ORDER—MAYOR TRENTON G. CREWE, JR.
ESTABLISHMENT OF QUORUM—MAYOR TRENTON G. CREWE, JR.
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE—COUNCILMAN WILLIAM B. WEISIGER
CONSENT AGENDA

1. Minutes of the regular meeting of May 24, 2010

CITIZENS’ PERIOD

OLD BUSINESS—TOWN MANAGER C. WAYNE SUTHERLAND, JR.

COMMITTEE REPORTS

1. Budget and Finance
a. VRS announces new options available for funding retirement on
employees

b. Budget for FY 2010-11 to be considered on third and final reading

2. Public Works

a. Speed limit revision on Grayson Turnpike Road from the railroad
underpass to West Main Street

b. Update on the New River Regional Water Authority

ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS

1. Ordinance No. 1249, the Budget Ordinance for fiscal year 2010-11, on
third and final reading



J. CLOSED SESSION
1. Closed session to consider the following matters:
a. Discussion with legal counsel, as allowed by Virginia Code Section
2.2-3711 (A) (7), regarding pending litigation concerning the
modular home case and the US Cellular case

b. Discussion with legal counsel, as allowed by Virginia Code Section
2.2-3711 (A) (3), regarding a real property matter with Joan Dunn

C. Consultation with legal counsel to discuss a specific legal matter,
as allowed by Virginia Code Section 2.2-3711 (A) (7), regarding
Ordinance No. 1245

K. ADJOURNMENT

G:\COUNCIL\COUNCIL AGENDAS\2010\061410.doc



WYTHEVILLE TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA INFORMATION

Meeting Date: Monday, June 14, 2010

[tem Name: Committee Reports

Item Number: H-1

Subject: Budget and Finance
SUMMARY:

The Budget and Finance Committee will report on the following matters:
a. VRS announces new options available for funding retirement on employees

b. Budget for FY 2010-11 to be considered on third and final reading



BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT

JUNE 14, 2010

We have received notice from the Virginia Retirement System noting that the
Virginia General Assembly, in its 2010 Session, passed legislation
implementing new plan provisions for employees hired or rehired on or after
July 1, 2010, who have no prior Virginia Retirement System service. This new
plan is called the VRS Plan 2. The legislation stipulates that Plan 2 employees
will pay the five percent member contribution through salary reduction on a
pretax basis according to Internal Revenue Service regulations. The legislation
goes on to say that a locality can elect to pay some or all of the five percent
member contribution on behalf of the Plan 2 employees. Regardless of the
direction the Council chooses to pursue, it requires the adoption of a resolution
that sets forth the option that we have chosen. The Committee will review this
in more detail next week since there is a June 30" deadline for the submission
of the resolution. We will have a recommendation for the Council at the next

meeting.

Later this evening, the Council will consider, on third and final reading, the
budget for Fiscal Year 2010-2011. The total budgeted amount under
consideration for third reading continues to be $16,332,905.00. As was
pointed out at the last meeting, several line items within the budget were
revised to more accurately reflect departmental appropriations, though the

total budgeted amount remains unchanged. The Committee would note again



that the budget does not include any real estate or personal property tax
increases, nor does it include any other increases in taxes. When the Budget
Ordinance is considered later this evening, it would be the recommendation of
the Budget and Finance Committee that it be adopted on third and final

reading.

Jacqueline K. King

John W. Jones, Jr.

H:COUNCIL\BFCOMMIT.RPT\2010\BFJUN14.doc



WYTHEVILLE TOWN COUNCIL

AGENDA

INFORMATION

Meeting Date:

Monday, June 14, 2010

[tem Name: Committee Reports

Item Number: H-2

Subject: Public Works
SUMMARY:

The Public Works Committee will report on the following matters:

a.

b.

Speed limit revision on Grayson Turnpike Road from the railroad underpass to

West Main Street

Update on the New River Regional Water Authority



PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE REPORT

JUNE 14, 2010

The Town’s Police Department has requested that we consider the relocation of a
speed limit sign on Grayson Turnpike Road. Currently, for vehicular traffic proceeding
south out of town, the speed limit changes from 35 miles per hour to 45 miles per hour
at a point near the railroad underpass. For vehicular traffic coming back into town, the
reduction in the speed limit to 35 miles per hour does not change until a point on West
Main Street near 24™ Street. Clearly, traffic coming into town approaching the sharp
curve on Grayson Turnpike Road onto West Main Street needs to have a speed
reduction. We agree with the recommendation of the Police Department and would
recommend that the speed limit on Grayson Turnpike Road be reduced to 35 miles per

hour at a point near the railroad underpass for vehicular traffic coming into town.

We thought it may be helpful to provide the Council with an update on the various
activities of the New River Regional Water Authority. The water treatment facility at
Austinville has been operating now for a little more than a one year period. Currently,
the treatment facility is producing approximately 1.5 million gallons of water per day.
The bulk of this production is currently being purchased by the Town of Wytheuville for
use in Progress Park. Wythe County has a number of water system upgrades ongoing,
and they will, in the very near future, increase their purchase of water to approximately
750,000 gallons per day. Carroll County, likewise, has a number of water line
improvements projects underway, and it is anticipated by fall of this year they will

consume about 500,000 gallons per day. There are funds appropriated in the current



year’s budget to increase the number of personnel at the facility since once all three
entities start consuming additional water, it will necessarily require the plant to operate
more than one shift per day. We would note that the plant is operating well, though
there continues to be several minor punch list items that the contractor needs to
address. There is no action required by the Council with regard to this matter, but we
did want everyone to know that the plant was functioning well and both Wythe County
and Carroll County are making the necessary improvements needed to purchase water

from the Authority.

William B. Weisiger

H. Judson Lambert

H\COUNCIL\PWCOMMIT.RPT\2010\PWJUN14.doc



WYTHEVILLE TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA INFORMATION

Meeting Date: Monday, June 14, 2010

Item Name: Ordinances/Resolutions

Item Number: -1

Subject: Ordinance No. 1249
SUMMARY:

Enclosed is the Budget Ordinance for fiscal year 2010-11. The budget is being
considered on third and final reading. When the motion is made, Council will need to

state, “to adopt and appropriate the departmental budget” on third and final reading.

G:\COUNCIL\Agenda Info\2010\Agenda Information061410.doc



ORDINANCE NO. 1249

At a regular meeting of the Town Council of the Town of Wytheville, Virginia, held
in the Council Chambers on the 10" May 2010, at 7:00 P.M.

Present:

Absent:

Ordinance No. 1249 concerning the budget for fiscal year beginning July 1, 2010,
and ending June 30, 2011.

AN ORDINANCE setting the tax rate of $0.16 per $100 valuation of Real Estate,
$0.28 per $100 valuation of Machinery and Tools, and $0.28 per $100 valuation of
Personal Property, excluding household goods and personal effects and including the
property separately classified by Sections 58.1-3200 and 58.1-3503 of the Code of
Virginia, the Personal Property Tax Relief Act as authorized by Section 58.1-3523 of the
Code of Virginia in the amount of sixty-one and forty-four one hundredths per centum
(61.44%), and a Bank Franchise Tax as authorized by Section 58.1-1209 of the Code of
Virginia in the amount of eighty per centum (80%) of the State rate of taxation for each
one hundred dollars ($100) of net capital of banks located in the Town. For such banks
which have offices outside the corporate limits of the Town, the tax is to be apportioned
as provided in Section 58.1-1211 of the Code of Virginia. The total rates as shown are
for municipal purposes.

The funds as indicated are appropriated for the administration and operation of
the several departments in the Town of Wytheville for the fiscal year ending June 30,
2011. Be it ordained by the Council of the Town of Wytheville that the amounts, as listed
herein, be appropriated from the estimate of revenues and funds on hand for the fiscal
year.

H:\ORDINANC\1239--Budget Ordinance for FY 09-10.doc



TOWN OF WYTHEVILLE

REVENUE SUMMARY BY DEPARTMENTS

FOR FISCAL YEAR 2010-2011

REVENUE BY DEPARTMENT 09-10 10-11 INCREASE
BUDGET PROPOSED (DECREASE)
'1. REAL ESTATE TAXES $1,205,000 $1,185,000 {$20,000),
1. PUBLIC SERVICES TAXES $35,000 $45,000 $10,000
1. PERSONAL PROPERTY TAXES $121,500 $136,500 $15,000
1. MOBILE HOME TAXES $3,000 $3,000 S0
1. MACHINERY AND TOOL TAXES $145,000 $180,000 $35,000
1. PENALTY AND INTEREST $8,000 $8,000 SO
2. STATE SALES TAX $480,000 $440,000 (540,000)
2. CONSUMER UTILITY TAX $235,000 $235,000 S0
2. FRANCHISE LICENSE TAX $80,000 $70,000 ($10,000)
2. MOTOR VEHICLE LICENSES $125,000 $125,000 )
2. BANK STOCK TAX $150,000 $175,000 $25,000
2. TOBACCO TAX $175,000 $175,000 S0
2. LODGING TAX $800,000 $850,000 $50,000
2. MEALS TAX $1,950,000 $1,987,000 $37,000
2. REFUSE DECALS/TAGS $43,000 $46,000 $3,000
2. COMMUNICATIONS TAX $405,000 $450,000 $45,000
2. BUSINESS LICENSES $1,100,000 $1,000,000 (5100,000)
3. PERMITS $61,600 $66,600 $5,000
4. FINES $50,000 $50,000 )
5. INTEREST ON INVESTMENT $317,100 $311,100 (56,000)
5. USE OR PROPERTY $607,400 $632,400 $25,000
5. SALE OF MATERIALS $3,600 $3,600 S0
&. FIRE SERVICES $46,000 $19,000 ($27,000)
4. REIMBURSED COST $122,905 $129,000 $6,095
6. ANIMAL CONTROL $600 $600 S0
4. STREET ASSESSMENTS $1,225 $1,225 )
6. MOWING ASSESSMENTS $7,500 $7.500 [30)
4. RECREATION FEES $79.800 $87,300 $7,500
6. MUSEUMS FEES $47,850 $47,850 )
6. MEETING CENTER $138,600 $138,600 SO
6. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT $1,500 $1,500 S0
7. MISCELLANEOQUS $186,230 $256,230 $70,000
7. INTERGOVERNMENTAL TRANSFER $3465,450 S0 (5365,450)|
8. LOANS/GRANTS S0 ) )
8. NON CATEGORICAL AID $98,000 $98,000 S0
8. CATEGORICAL AID $2,475,400 $2,322,400 ($153,000))
9. SALE OF PROPERTY $22,500 $22,500 )
TOTAL GENERAL FUND 11,693,760 11,305,905 7,855



TOWN OF WYTHEVILLE

* GENERAL FUND APPROPRIATIONS *

FOR FISCAL YEAR 2010-2011

0910 T0-11 TNCREATE |

SUDGET TROSOMED | (DECAEASE)
Jrows COuNCIL $372070 3751406 3379335
Frown cLeax $373.000 5304.400 $11,468
JCOMMISSION MEMBERS $12,000 $12,000 50
JrowN MANAGER $132,000 $138,340 $3.340
ASSISTANT TOWN MANAGER $109.000 $111,950 52,950
LEGAL SERVICES $11.000 511,000 %
JinoerenpenT aunitoRs 535,000 $35,000 50
JFOWN TREASURER'S OFACE $175,000 $164.420 (38.500)
Jauromornve root $2%0,000 sinas ($30.545)
ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT $245.000 §253.52¢ 58,529
CLERK OF COUNT 500 ) (52.500)|
POLICE DEPARTMENT $1.700,000 $1.761.8% $61.830 |
COMMUNICATION CENTER $290.000 5299.785 319,755
FIRE DEPARTMENT 3410000 $376,240 {533.760)
NSPECTION-SUILDINGS §72.%0 4,820 $1.920
[AMIMAL CONTROL $42.000 343,185 $1.188
PUBLIC TRANSIY $22.500 $22.500 %
PUBLIC WORKS ADMING. $114,000 $19.778 $8.778
[mainenance or sers $933,000 5455004 | (5477.936)
Jsnow AND ICE REMOVAL $130.000 $120,000 {510,000)
IRAFFIC SGNS AND SIGNALS $387.538 ($47.
STREET CONSTRUCTION $285,000 S282 545 (8.
JSTREET AND ROAD CLEAMING $41,000 540,260 {57
Jreruse CoOUECTION 156,000 3153585 {
JLanomi $94.000 $13.400 {582,400
[WEED CONTROL - MOWING 3143 $%8,780 (544,220)
[GENERAL PROPERTIES $47,000 $51.500 $4.500
frown Hau $340,000 $373.738 $33.738
JOLD COMMUNITY CENTER 510,000 $12.100 $2.100
Jranxs/srORTs cCOMPLEXSS 526,000 $81,958 $23.955
JCONFERENCE AND COMMUNITY CENTER $508.000 3541750 $36.769
JEMERGENCY sERVICES DG $82,000 .1
JannaaL serer 35,000 2050 (52.9%0),
JE LEE TRINKLE VISTOR CENTER 589,000 $73.520 ($15.480)
MEETING CENTER $440.000 873470 (546,330)
JCOMMUNITY ACTIVITIES - RELIMBURSEMENT $30,000 $41.060 $13,060
JTAX REUEF FOR ELDERLY $7,000 $7.500 __$s00 |
RECREATION ADMINISTRATION $337,000 $372.635 $35,638
JCOMMUNITY PROGRAMS 500,000 $79.858 (s145)]
JOUTDOOR SWIMMING POOL $103.000 $72,450 {$%0.350)|
JaTHLENC PROGRAMS $112,000 $124,707 $12,707
NEW COMMUNITY PROGRAMS $15,000 $11,050 (53.950)
INDOOR SYAMMING POOL 524,500 $241.3% {523,170}
Jroumnires cae $80.000 $108,200 $28.200
Jrmess cane $140,000 S164 343 $4.943
|crmeremes $270.000 $29,225 (s8.775))
auseums $185,000 $193.780 $8.780
JHERITAGE EDUCATION PROG. $148,000 $147,189 (317811}
[HomesTEAD MuSEUM $155,000 $147.500 (§7.500)
[DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC INFO. $274,000 $201.275 $§7.275
ICHAMBER OF COMMERCE $95.800 $104,000 $8,200
HORICULTURE $123,006 5124360 $1.960
JOERT RENREMENT $1.134.4%0 $1.000087 | (3125433
] TOTAL GENERAL FUND 511,693,760 S1L08.%08 | (3387,



http:PUIII.IC

TOWN OF WYTHEVILLE

WATER AND SEWER REVENUES BY DEPARTMENT
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2010-2011

"'l_—" DEPARTMENT 09-10 10-11 INCREASE ]
BUDGET PROPOSED | (DECREASE)

1. GRANTS, LOANS & CONTRIBUTIONS $1,073,000 $377,000 ($696,000)

2. REVENUE FROM WATER SERVICES $2,700,000 | $2,500,000 (szoo,ooo)“
2. WATER CONNECTIONS $25,000 $25,000 $0
2. MISCELLANEOUS WATER CHARGES $5,000 $5,000 $0
5. REVENUE FROM SEWER SERVICES $1,850,000 | $2,050,000 $200,000
5. SEWER CONNECTIONS $20,000 $20,000 )
5. MISCELLANEOUS SEWER SERVICES $15,000 $15,000 $0
6. PENALTY $35,000 $35.000 50
TOTAL $5,723,000 | $5,027,000 (5696.000)




TOWN OF WYTHEVILLE

* WATER/SEWER FUND APPROPRIATIONS *
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2010 - 2011

DEPARTMENT 09-10 09-10 INCREASE

| BUDGET __ [PROPOSED | (DECREASE)

{1 WATER/WASTEWATER ADMINIS. $740,000 |  $1,212,09 $472,091

||2. WATER TREATMENT PLANT $900.000 $876,220 ($23,780)
|l2. WASTEWATER TREAT PLANT $905,000 $922,950 $17.950
|[3. WATER SYSTEM MAINTENANCE $460,000 $476,006 $16,006
|I3_WASTEWATER SYSTEM MAINT. $70.000 $55,695 ($14,305)
|3 WASTEWATER PRETREATMENT $81,000 $76.720 ($4.280)
|l4. wATER CONSTRUCTION $209,000 $152,053 (§56.947)
||4. WASTEWATER CONSTRUCTION $42,000 $41,555 (5445)
||4. INSPECTIONS - CONSTRUCTION $0 S0 )
||4. WATER/WASTEWATER UTILITIES $1,400,000 $297.710 | ($1,102,290)

I5. DEBT RETIREMENT $916,000 $916,000
|[TOTAL WATER & SEWER FUND $5,723,000 95,027,000 $696,000



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE WYTHEVILLE TOWN COUNCIL
HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS ON MONDAY, MAY 24, 2010, AT 7:00 P.M.

Members present:  Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., William B.
Weisiger, H. Judson Lambert

Members absent: None

Others present: Town Manager C. Wayne Sutherland, Jr., Assistant Town Manager
Stephen A. Moore, Chief Deputy Clerk Sharon G. Corvin, Town Treasurer
Michael G. Stephens, Town Attorney Robert P. Kaase, Police Officer
John Humphrey, Danny Gordon with WYVE/WXBX, Wayne Quesenberry
with  Wytheville Enterprise, Jack Hunley, Tommy Hundley, Toni
Testerman, Bill Young, Susan Losey, Jean Groseclose, Becky Grubb,
Andy Kegley

RE: CALL TO ORDER, QUORUM, PLEDGE

Mayor Crewe called the meeting to order and established that a quorum of Council members
was present. The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Vice-Mayor King.

RE: CONSENT AGENDA

Mayor Crewe presented the consent agenda consisting of the minutes of the regular meeting of
May 10, 2010. A motion was made by Councilman Weisiger and seconded by Councilman
Lambert to approve the consent agenda consisting of the minutes of the regular meeting of May
10, 2010. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any discussion on the motion. There being none, the
motion was approved with the following voting in favor and there being no opposition: For:
Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., William B. Weisiger, H. Judson
Lambert. Against: None.

RE: PUBLIC HEARING — BUDGET ORDINANCE

Mayor Crewe stated the meeting constituted a public hearing (due notice having been given) to
consider the Budget Ordinance for fiscal year beginning July 1, 2010, and ending on June 30,
2011. He noted that the Budget Ordinance has been passed on first, but not yet final, reading,
and it will be considered at this meeting on second reading. Mayor Crewe advised that in
looking at the sign up sheet, several people had indicated that they were going to talk about the
Brain Injury Services, and noted he is thinking this may have to do with a budget item, and he
will recognize them in a minute. He noted that these comments are related to the budget, but
not strictly about the budget. Mayor Crewe advised that unless he is missing something, there is
no one else who had indicated that they were going to speak during the public hearing on the
budget, and noted the Council would be glad to hear from anyone who would like to speak
regarding the budget. He noted that the Budget Ordinance will be acted upon on second
reading, and it does not include any tax increases. Mayor Crewe pointed out that there have
been a few amendments since the last meeting that the Council will discuss in a moment, and
the categories have changed slightly, but the total budget has not changed. He noted that for
the water and sewer side, some adjustments have been made, and the General Fund budget
proposed is $11,305,905.

Mayor Crewe advised that the Water and Sewer Fund budget is $5,027,000. He inquired if there
are any other comments during the public hearing on the Budget Ordinance. There being none,
he declared the public hearing closed.

RE: CITIZENS’ PERIOD

Mayor Crewe stated the next agenda item is Citizens’ Period. He noted that technically, the
Council is not required to hold a public hearing on the telecable franchise, but the Council has
asked and, graciously, Shentel Cable Company has accepted an invitation to appear at this
meeting in regard to the transfer of the telecable franchise. He advised that Mr. Bill Young is
attending the meeting from Shentel Cable Company. Mayor Crewe noted that the Council has
no choice, and he guesses the Council could refuse to transfer the telecable franchise, but
advised that the local government does not have a lot of impact, and it is controlled by the
federal law. He explained that what the Council has in their packet and for the members of the
public, Shentel Cable Company has purchased the JetBroadband assets and has requested a
transfer of the telecable franchise from JetBroadband to Shentel Cable Company. Mayor Crewe
stated that Mr. Young does not have to speak, but the Council will be glad to hear from him, and
noted that the Council appreciates him attending the meeting.



Mr. Bill Young stated he is attending the meeting requesting the approval of the Council to
transfer the telecable franchise from JetBroadband to Shentel Cable Company. He remarked
that he will tell the Council a little about Shentel Cable Company if the Council is not familiar
with them. Mr. Young noted that Shentel Cable Company is a 110 year old company, and of
those 110 years, they have operated cable television since 1980. He advised that they are very
familiar with this, and in Wytheville, once they come in, everything that JetBroadband is doing
now, they will continue to do. Mr. Young noted that they have engineers who will come in to test
everything that is in the system, and anything that needs to be repaired, they will repair and fix it
and get it up to par. He advised that they will fix any problems, and they will rebuild quite a bit of
the system. Mr. Young stated that once it is finished, their customers will have the best video
and television they could ask for. He indicated that it will be the same way with the high speed
internet, and whatever band a person wanted to get into, they would be able to access it. Mr.
Young explained that once they get the approval from the FCC, then they will start to work. He
noted they will be coming back to the Council to give them an update as to when they think they
will get everything worked out and have it ready to cut over into the new system and have a
date and work to that extent. Mayor Crewe indicated that he took the liberty of speaking to Mr.
Young, and he was gracious enough and talked to him before the meeting started. He stated
that both Committees have looked at this and discussed it, and there were four or five things the
Committee had discussed. He noted that anyone who has a question can feel free to voice it.
Mayor Crewe stated that in the existing franchise, there is a provision that free service is offered
to every school in the system, to the library, and to government offices. He noted that his
understanding is that Shentel would be willing to continue that. Mr. Young advised that they
would do the same thing, and it will be the same as what JetBroadband is doing. Mayor Crewe
noted that everything will transfer as it is. Mr. Young noted that is correct. Mayor Crewe inquired
if there is any possibility that in the existing franchise, those free spots are for basic service only,
and if there is a chance that it could be expanded beyond basic service. Mr. Young stated that
he thinks this is something that Shentel could consider once they obtain the system. Mayor
Crewe remarked that some of the places the Town did not have back when the franchise was
done exist now, and the Town has opened additional government buildings like the Visitor's
Center and the Recreation Center. He inquired if this is something the Town could talk to
Shentel about in adding these to the list of these places. Mr. Young noted that is correct. Mayor
Crewe stated that another issue the Town has talked about, and noted he has had several
people ask him about it, is there seems to be a tendency on the present equipment on the
digital channels to hang up, and on the digital channels sometimes there is no audio, sometimes
there is no video, sometimes there is neither, and sometimes there is just a frozen image that
stays for hours at a stretch. He inquired if this is something that Mr. Young is aware of or that
technology can address. Mr. Young answered that technology can take care of that. He
indicated that these are the things he thinks his engineers will find when they come in and do
the testing to see what they have to replace or what they need to replace. Mr. Young reiterated
that basically, they will rebuild the entire system from the head-in on up to the customer. Mayor
Crewe inquired if this will consist of mostly fiber. Mr. Young remarked that it will be fiber and
coax. Mayor Crewe stated it will be a combination of fiber and coax. Mr. Young noted that is
correct. Mayor Crewe noted that his understanding is that maybe not all, but certainly most, of
the local employees will remain employed. Mr. Young stated that they have offered all
employees the same thing that they are doing right now. He explained that the office will stay in
Wytheville, and there will be no changes at this time. Mr. Young remarked that there could be
some changes in the future with improvements and with the number of customers they would
gain over a certain length of time that additional people would be considered. Mayor Crewe
thanked Mr. Young for his comments and advised that these are all of the notes he had made of
what the Committees had discussed. He noted if anyone else has any comments to please not
hesitate to express them. Vice-Mayor King stated that she has two comments, and Mr. Young
has already answered the one about better service. She inquired regarding the rates. Mr. Young
advised that regarding the rates, everything will be the same as it is now. He explained that if
there are any rate changes or requests, they will come to the Town Council and discuss it prior
to the rate increase. Vice-Mayor King noted that the citizen who contacted her was hoping the
rates would go down. Mr. Young advised that he did not think they would go down, but with
some of the packages maybe the rates will be lower, but not necessarily he does not think, and
everyone would like for the rates to go down. Mayor Crewe inquired if there are any other
guestions or comments. Town Manager Sutherland noted that he and Mr. Young talked about
this on the telephone the other day, and in 2007, when JetBroadband was given the franchise,
there was an ordinance that set forth a number of agreements and requirements. He advised
that he did not know how that fits in with what they are asking for in terms of a resolution
because he knows that Mr. Young is a good man, but inquired if the resolution needs to
incorporate by reference those agreements made in Ordinance No. 1209 in 2007. Mr. Young
indicated that whatever the ordinance covers will be the same thing, and whatever is in that
franchise is the franchise that they take. Mayor Crewe noted what he thinks the Town would be
doing is amending the ordinance to replace the name of JetBroadband in the 2007 ordinance



and writing in the name of Shentel because the Town is simply transferring the exact same
franchise, but the Council may want to clarify some of the language in it. Mr. Young stated that
is correct, and this is what it is. Vice-Mayor King inquired if Shentel has already taken over
JetBroadband. Mr. Young noted that they cannot take over until they get these resolutions
approved, and they have Form 394 that has to go to the FCC. He explained that once the FCC
gets all of this information and they go through it, then they will award it to them. Mr. Young
indicated that everyone has agreed between JetBroadband and Shentel for the monies, and it is
all in escrow, and they are just waiting. Mayor Crewe advised that some of the things that they
have talked about are not in the present ordinance, for example, some of the buildings the Town
has now were not in existence in 2007 such as the Meeting Center and the Recreation Center,
and these facilities did not exist, and the Council wants to add those facilities. Mayor Crewe
stated what he thinks the Council needs to do, and advised he did not know what problems this
would cause, but the Council needs to transfer the franchise as it is written in 2007, if this is
what the Council wants to do, and then negotiate some amendments to it thereafter once
Shentel owns the system. Mayor Crewe inquired if this makes sense. Mr. Young noted that is
correct, exactly. Mayor Crewe stated that as a practical matter, if the Council does not pass the
resolution, he does not think the Council can stop the sale, and it is going to happen. He
advised that Mr. Young has been good enough to come and talk to the Council. Mayor Crewe
stated that the County has already passed the transfer in the county. Mayor Crewe inquired if
this answered Town Manager Sutherland’s question. Town Manager Sutherland advised that he
is unsure if it answered his question and inquired of Town Attorney Kaase if he has a copy of
the 2007 ordinance. Town Attorney Kaase stated he did not have a copy of the ordinance. Town
Manager Sutherland advised that it is in the Council notebook. Town Attorney Kaase advised
that he does have a copy of the ordinance. Town Manager Sutherland noted he has been
reviewing Article 11.2, and Mayor Crewe noted that Article 13 is the other one to consider.
Mayor Crewe indicated that these are the sections that govern the transfer of the franchise, and
it states it should not be transferred without the prior consent of the franchising authority, which
shall not be unreasonably held or delayed. Town Manager Sutherland remarked that if he
understands what the Council just stated, the resolution could be adopted and, subsequently,
the Council is going to redraft the ordinance and put the name Shentel Cable Company in the
ordinance. Town Attorney Kaase stated that is correct. Mr. Young noted that is correct. Mayor
Crewe inquired if there are any other questions, comments, or discussions. Mayor Crewe
inquired if Mr. Young has any further comments. Mr. Young stated that Shentel looks forward to
serving the Town of Wytheville and to give the citizens the best system that is in existence that
they can get. He noted it will be a state of the art system. Vice-Mayor King noted that everyone
could get excited about that. Mr. Young advised that they are currently finishing everything in
the Town of Covington, and they just cut in everything new, and the people are really excited.
He noted it is the same thing in Summersville, West Virginia, western West Virginia, Petersburg,
West Virginia, and Franklin, West Virginia, and then some smaller places. Vice-Mayor King
noted that when the cable goes out, the citizens have to call an 800 humber. She inquired if this
is the way it is still going to be. Mr. Young answered that the 800 number that a person will call
will be their service center, and they operate 24/7, and it will be Shentel people answering the
phone. He advised it will not be any after hours that would go some other place, and the calls
will come directly to Shentel and they take care of it. Mr. Young remarked that they also do the
dispatching. Mayor Crewe inquired if there are any further comments. There being none from
the Council, he asked if any member of the audience has a comment or a question at this time.
There being none, he noted he will declare this discussion session closed. Mayor Crewe
indicated that the Council will consider the resolution later on the agenda. Mr. Young indicated
that he will wait to hear the decision of the Council. Mayor Crewe pointed out that he did not
think it would be much longer. He thanked Mr. Young for his comments.

Mayor Crewe stated that Ms. Susan Losey and Ms. Jean Groseclose were next on the list to
address the Council. Ms. Susan Losey was recognized and stated she is from Brain Injury
Services of Southwest Virginia. She advised that their organization started in the year 2000 with
some people that the Council may know, who are Greg and Fran Rooker. Ms. Losey explained
that their son was 11 years old when he suffered an acquired brain injury and, subsequently,
died of that injury. She noted that they work with victims of traumatic brain injury and acquired
brain injury. Ms. Losey indicated that anyone at this meeting could have family members who
have suffered this, and it could be from a stroke to a major automobile accident. Ms. Losey
stated that they work with people and provide services in Wytheville since 2006. She remarked
that they are based in Roanoke, but they have their own office right off Monroe Street, and they
are really optimistic about money. Ms. Losey stated they know times are hard, but they are
asking for even $50 just so they can put on their grants to state that the Town of Wytheville
supports them in their endeavors, and this would help them. She advised that the Wythe County
Board of Supervisors stated they would not take any new requests, but they gave them $150
and this means so much because they can put this in grants to show local support. Ms. Losey
explained that they have a case manager who helps people. She noted that families are let out
of the hospital with someone who is another person. Ms. Losey continued that they call it a



traumatic brain injury, but it is really the death of one person, and the birth of a new person. She
remarked that memories and things are gone, personalities change, and it is very traumatic.
She advised that these people are let out of the hospital and do not know what to do. Ms. Losey
indicated that they get desperate phone calls on a regular basis. She stated that in Wythe
County, they have a year long waiting list right now of people who need their services, but they
cannot accommodate them, and they are trying to work through this in a certain amount of time.
Ms. Losey indicated that they have a case manager who helps direct people to services, and
her job is through a C & | grant, which Brain Injury Services also was helped to get started by
that, but it is a grant that helps her be a community service support person. She advised that
she goes out and sees people every week, and they work on very active things to do in the
community. Ms. Losey indicated that one of her clients in the last week has gotten a job. She
noted that another client is going to have a job, and last year, he rolled into the IDC in a
wheelchair wanting a job and could not use anything but one hand, and now he is walking, and
he is going to have a job. She stated it really helps people come back into the community to be
a part. Ms. Losey indicated it is like a silent epidemic. She stated if a person is like they are right
now and they are in a terrible car accident or have a stroke or something, this person is different
and the person knows it. She advised that, suddenly, people just want to stay in their house,
and they do not want to go out, and it is very difficult. Ms. Losey noted that this is why she
brought with her one of their star people. She introduced Ms. Jean Groseclose, and noted she is
a veteran of this service, and she is working once a week as a nurse, but she has suffered from
juvenile diabetes since she was a child. Ms. Losey explained that they did not diagnose Ms.
Groseclose until she was 21, and because of the comas that she has endured, she has an
acquired brain injury, which means her brain was damaged on the cellular level. She noted that
Ms. Groseclose is just going to give a few words at this meeting. Ms. Losey remarked that Ms.
Groseclose is one of her favorite people because she wants so much to get better and to do her
best.

Ms. Jean Groseclose stated that the Brain Injury Services has been helping her for about two
and one-half years. She remarked that they are helping her because she has brain injuries from
a diabetic coma. Ms. Groseclose explained that her son came home and she was in a coma,
and found her dead, and they brought her back to life. She indicated that she had rotten teeth in
the front, and they helped her get dentures so she would not have the rotten teeth anymore. Ms.
Groseclose remarked that they helped her buy glucose strips because they cost so much
money that she cannot buy them because she lives on $854 a month, and one day of work. She
stated that Brain Injury Services comes to see her, and Pam, a Brain Injury Services worker,
usually comes to see her every three months, and she is coming now once a week. Ms.
Groseclose indicated that they have computers at work and because of the brain injury, she
cannot do this now. She advised that the people at work get mad at her because she cannot
operate the computers. Ms. Groseclose remarked that she tries but she cannot do it. She noted
that Pam is helping her with that. She noted that Pam stated when she comes on Wednesday,
she is going to help her with the computer. Ms. Groseclose advised that she does not have any
memory at all anymore. Mayor Crewe sympathized and noted that computers scare a lot of
people, and a lot of people have problems with them. Ms. Groseclose indicated that it has been
bad since everything happened. She stated she is not the same like she used to be, and she
wished she could be, but she will never be ever again. Ms. Groseclose reiterated that Brain
Injury Services has helped her a lot. She stated if she did not have the glucose strips she could
not check her blood sugar, and she has dentures now, and she is not afraid to smile anymore.
Ms. Groseclose indicated that she can smile now, and she has top dentures. She noted that she
can smile now, and this makes her feel better about herself because when she could not smile
for having rotten teeth, she did not want to smile at all. Mayor Crewe advised Ms. Groseclose
that she does very well speaking. He pointed out that he has some idea of how hard it is to
speak to a lot of people, and noted that Ms. Groseclose does very well. Ms. Losey indicated that
this will show the Council a complexity of a brain injury. She stated that Ms. Groseclose can run
her computer at home great, but she cannot run the computer at work. Ms. Groseclose
indicated that she cannot run the computer at work, and they get mad at her because she
cannot do it. She reiterated that she is not like she used to be, and she never will be again ever.
Ms. Losey advised that Ms. Groseclose is a beautiful person now, and this is what they
celebrate, and they are going to be using computer programs to help her with these difficulties.
Ms. Groseclose summarized that she is not the same. Mayor Crewe thanked Ms. Losey and
Ms. Groseclose for attending the meeting. Ms. Losey advised that Brain Injury Services wanted
the Council to meet Ms. Groseclose. She pointed out that they are a nonprofit organization, so
any help they can get would be appreciated. Ms. Losey stated she knows times are bad, but
they wanted to come and ask the Council. She thanked the Council for their time. Ms.
Groseclose thanked the Council for allowing her to speak. Mayor Crewe inquired if any member
of the Council has any questions or comments. Vice-Mayor King stated she works at the
hospital on Wednesdays from 9:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. She noted it has been several months ago,
but this gentleman from Hillsville had been at the hospital, and they had referred him to the
Brain Injury Services office. Vice-Mayor King explained that she was getting ready to leave



work, so she told them to follow her and she would take them over there. She stated that there
was no one at the Brain Injury Services office, and there is nothing on the door to tell people
that they are not available. Ms. Losey noted that they are not an emergency operation because
they are out in the community so much. She advised that she is scheduled for appointments
every day, and the case manager can be out. Ms. Losey remarked that they have the same
area as Mount Rogers, so they have five counties. She indicated that there is someone from
Hillsville that they have just received information on. Vice-Mayor King advised that it was a man.
Ms. Losey stated that is correct, and inquired if this gentleman’s wife died. Vice-Mayor King
stated she did not know if his wife died, and advised that she did not know the family, and she
just met them at the hospital. Ms. Losey noted that she thinks they probably have this, but as
she has stated, they have such a long waiting list. She stated they are also working with Mount
Rogers now for Wounded Warriors because so many of the veterans are coming back and they
are having brain injuries where it looks like they are fine, and they are having the IED blast, and
their brain has twisted on the brain stem and then twisted back, and they think they are fine, and
they come home and have a different personality. She advised that the veterans cannot do what
they used to do, and it is very devastating to the families. Ms. Losey indicated that some of the
veterans are being sent back to the military to serve. She advised that there is a Wounded
Warriors program with Mount Rogers, and these individuals go to the top of the list immediately
on their waiting list. Ms. Losey explained that if someone is in desperate need, they go to the
top of the list, so if the man from Hillsville is in desperate need, he would go to the top of the list.
Vice-Mayor King advised that her suggestion would be that maybe Brain Injury Services needs
to put something on the door to state that no one is in the office and people need to go to Mount
Rogers. Ms. Losey indicated that she did not know that everyone with a brain injury would need
to go to Mount Rogers, but if a person has her card, there is a telephone number for them and
they have an answering machine, and they answer all of those phone calls that are put on there.
She remarked that she had her card there. Vice-Mayor King indicated that she is trying to recall,
but she thinks they called the telephone number that day from the hospital, and she does not
think anyone ever answered and the answering machine did not pick up. She inquired if Town
Manager Sutherland remembers her telling him about that. Town Manager Sutherland stated he
remembers this. Ms. Losey advised that she is sorry about that, and noted that they are
shorthanded. She indicated that she knows there is someone from Hillsville who they have just
started working with that just went through their board, and it has to through Roanoke from
Hillsville. Ms. Losey noted that she is just stating it is very complicated, and they do have a list.
She explained that some people were put on the list last June, and they are just now coming up
for services because there are so many people and so few funds. Vice-Mayor King commented
that she ended up taking this person to Mount Rogers so, hopefully, they helped him there. Ms.
Losey stated that is good and remarked that they just want to help people as much as they can.
She noted that they are working very hard to try to do this. Ms. Losey inquired if there are any
further questions. Mayor Crewe thanked her for attending the meeting. Councilman Lambert
inquired if there is any federal funding for the Wounded Warriors Program. Ms. Losey stated
that is correct, and it is through Mount Rogers. She noted that, in fact, they are going to get
money per month, and she thinks it is $250 per wounded warrior, for seeing them a month. She
indicated that most of their services are free, but her services are not free. Ms. Losey explained
that hers comes from the Department of Rehabilitation, and she is working on a grant. She
advised that if people are able to pay, they have to pay after their first 20 hours that she works
with them, and she can work with someone from one to four hours per week. Ms. Losey
remarked that most of their people are unable to pay, so they do not have to pay. She stated
that they are working with Mount Rogers, but it is kind of a funny thing because a lot of the
veterans do not want to admit they have a problem, and not too many are coming forward. Ms.
Losey advised that they currently have three that have been identified. Councilman Lambert
commented that this is understandable and regrettable. Ms. Losey stated that it is very
understandable, but it is going to be a major problem when all of them come back from serving,
so they need to be ready, and they are hoping to be ready. She apologized to Vice-Mayor King
that she had the problem with no one at their office or answering the telephone.

Mayor Crewe inquired if there are others who wished to address the Town Council during
Citizens’ Period about anything that is not otherwise on the agenda. There being none, he
proceeded with the agenda.

RE: OLD BUSINESS

Under Old Business, Town Manager Sutherland reported the following:

1. Both Council Committees will meet this week at their regular day and time. Because next
week is a fifth week, neither Committee will meet next week.

2. The Town will observe the Memorial Day holiday next Monday, May 31.



Vice-Mayor King indicated that she thinks she has a problem with meeting this Thursday
morning. Mayor Crewe stated that Vice-Mayor King has to be in the park. Vice-Mayor King
explained that she has to be at Spiller School at 6:00 a.m. Mayor Crewe stated that Vice-Mayor
King will be there from 6:00 a.m. until about 9:30 a.m. Town Manager Sutherland stated that
they can discuss the meeting schedule. Vice-Mayor King noted that is correct. Mayor Crewe
remarked that he will have the same problem on Thursday morning. Vice-Mayor King stated that
is correct. Mayor Crewe advised that Run For The Wall will be in town on Wednesday night and
Thursday morning.

RE: BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT

Councilman Jones, reporting for the Budget and Finance Committee, reported that later in the
meeting, the Council will consider, on second reading, adoption of the budget for fiscal year
2010-2011. He noted that as required by law, a public hearing with regard to the budget was
conducted earlier in the meeting. Councilman Jones explained that the budget is scheduled to
be heard on third and final reading for adoption at the June 14 meeting of Council. He remarked
that the total budgeted amount under consideration for second reading continues to be
$16,332,905.00. Councilman Jones stated that several line items within the budget have been
revised to more accurately reflect departmental appropriations. He stated that as noted,
however, the total budgeted amount remains the same. Councilman Jones noted that the
Committee would again note that the budget does not include any real estate or personal
property tax increases, nor does it include any other increases in taxes or fees. He advised that
when the Budget Ordinance is considered later in the meeting, it would be the recommendation
of the Budget and Finance Committee that it be adopted on second but not final reading.

Councilman Jones also reported that the Town’'s fiscal year 2009-2010 will end on June 30,
2010. He stated that as such, it is necessary for the Treasurer to close the books for the fiscal
year. Councilman Jones advised that to accommodate the year-end closing procedures, the
Committee would recommend that the Treasurer provide the Council with a listing of all
transfers to be made within the current year's budget. He stated that these transfers should not
change the total budgeted amount for the current fiscal year on the general fund side but will on
the water and sewer side of the budget. Councilman Jones advised that since the water and
sewer fund revisions will change the budget's total, it is necessary that the Council conduct a
public hearing. He stated the Committee would recommend that the public hearing be
scheduled for the June 28, 2010, meeting. Councilman Jones advised that additionally, the
Committee would request the Treasurer to prepare a report such that an action could be taken
by the Council at their June 28 meeting. Mayor Crewe inquired if anyone on Council has any
problems with having the public hearing for the revisions to the present budget at the June 28
meeting, and have the Treasurer prepare a report showing which items need to be transferred.
Mayor Crewe advised that since there is no objection, the Council, by consensus, will adopt this
schedule, and the Council will do all of this at the June 28 meeting. A copy of the Budget and
Finance Committee report is attached and made part of these minutes. (Attachment).

RE: PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE REPORT

Councilman Weisiger, reporting for the Public Works Committee, reported that the
Commonwealth Transportation Board will conduct a public hearing on Thursday, June 3, 2010,
at New River Community College beginning at 6:00 p.m. to receive comments for projects that
should be included in the Fiscal Year 2011-2016 Six-Year Improvement Program. He advised
that the Town annually provides input to the Department of Transportation on those projects that
the Council feels are key transportation issues for Wytheville. Councilman Weisiger commented
that again this year, the Council would emphasize that the Town has as a priority the completion
of Community Boulevard that would link Peppers Ferry Road and Lithia Road. He noted that as
the Council is aware, this is the section of roadway that runs in front of the new Community
Center and would also provide a much needed entrance to Wytheville Community College.
Councilman Weisiger remarked that also, the Town has noted, as a priority, the improvements
on Peppers Ferry Road from a point where it intersects Interstate 77 eastwardly to the corporate
limit. He stated this is a highly traveled section of roadway and widening and realignment of this
section of roadway would be beneficial to the large volumes of traffic going to Progress Park.
Councilman Weisiger stated that through the years, and again this year, the Town will also
identify a number of other transportation projects that would be beneficial to Wytheville. He
stated that, unfortunately, there is not sufficient funding for the Department of Transportation to
commence the Town’s top priority projects. Councilman Weisiger advised that the Committee
would note that the Town does think it is worthwhile to include in its remarks to the
Commonwealth Transportation Board the Town’'s endorsement of the efforts by the
Commonwealth Railroad Board to provide passenger service to Southwest Virginia. He noted
that the Council would request that the Town Manager submit these projects to the
Commonwealth Transportation Board for their consideration. Councilman Weisiger stated that



additionally, there is on file, in the Town Manager’s Office, a copy of the input to be provided to
the Department of Transportation that is available to anyone who would like to review it. Mayor
Crewe inquired if anyone has any additions, deletions, or changes to the list of projects that the
Town is going to submit to VDOT. He inquired if anyone has any objections to this. Mayor
Crewe advised that by consensus, the Council will ask the Town Manager to submit that list to
the Commonwealth Transportation Board. Mayor Crewe advised Town Manager Sutherland that
the Council will ask him to submit this listing.

Councilman Weisiger also reported that the Committee had reported, previously, that the Town
has received loan and grant funds from Rural Development to install a new 20-inch water line
that is the final connection between the Town and the New River Regional Water Authority. He
stated that a large segment of this line will be installed in Main Street. Councilman Weisiger
remarked that the Council has considered that while this construction is occurring, this may be
an opportune time to perform certain other street improvements. He advised that their
Committee is considering preliminary designs of certain street enhancements and
improvements from a point on Main Street at 6™ Street eastwardly to its intersection with
Interstate 81. Councilman Weisiger commented that in the downtown area, there are certain
electrical conduits that are needed to serve the street lighting. He noted that a number of the
electrical circuits in the downtown area have failed, and the inclusion of new conduits in this
area would enhance the Town’'s ability to improve the lighting in the downtown area.
Councilman Weisiger stated that from a point near 11" Street eastwardly to Withers Road, the
Town is considering certain lane changes and landscaping improvements in the existing center
lane. He advised that all of these design concepts are very preliminary in nature at this point,
but, hopefully, the Committee can have a more refined design schematic in the very near future.
Councilman Weisiger stated that assuming that the Town can, in fact, develop a plan that would
enhance this section of Main Street, the Committee would suggest that the Council pursue other
Rural Development loan and grant funding. He advised that there is yet available certain
stimulus money for which an application could be made. Councilman Weisiger noted that,
hopefully, the Committee will have additional information on this proposed project in the very
near future. A copy of the Public Works Committee report is attached and made part of these
minutes. (Attachment).

RE: ORDINANCE NO. 1249 — BUDGET ORDINANCE

Mayor Crewe presented Ordinance No. 1249, the Budget Ordinance for fiscal year 2010-11, on
second reading. A motion was made by Councilman Jones and seconded by Vice-Mayor King
to approve Ordinance No. 1249, the Budget Ordinance for fiscal year 2010-11, on second, but
not final, reading. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any discussion on the motion to approve the
Budget Ordinance on second reading. There being none, the motion was approved with the
following voting in favor and there being no opposition:

FOR: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., William B.
Weisiger, H. Judson Lambert

AGAINST: None

ABSTENTIONS: None

Ordinance No. 1249 was adopted on second, but not final, reading. Councilman Jones advised
that he voted yea on the budget, but indicated that he has some comments. Mayor Crewe
advised that he did not mean to cut off Councilman Jones. Councilman Jones noted that is fine.
He stated that although he voted yes on the 2010-2011 budget as presented, he does have a
few concerns. Councilman Jones advised that the Town’s location at the intersection of two
major interstates has blessed the Town with a nice flow of meals, lodging, and sales tax, but
with the economy as it has been, the Town has seen the tightening of revenues of all types to
include State funds, but the Town’s expenses continue to climb. He remarked that overall, the
Town's operations are well managed, providing the essential services to the citizens.
Councilman Jones stated that last year, during the budget readings, this is what the Council
said, and advised that this was from the May 26, 2009, meeting, and noted that he is just
reading part of it. “Over the years, services provided by the Town continue to grow. All of the
services that are provided are appreciated by our citizens, but the cost of providing these
services continues to escalate. The Town of Wytheville, like other governments, is seeing
certain declines in revenues, and it is likely that appropriations from the State will continue to
decline. We have looked at any number of programs that the Town is currently offering, and we
think that during the coming year, we have to take certain actions to ensure that the value of
revenues and appropriations equal. During this fiscal year, we think it is important to take steps
that will reduce our expenditures. We will be evaluating user fees for such programs as brush
pickup and curb side trash collection. We will also evaluate the times and frequencies of these
programs and others as offered. We plan to evaluate reduction or elimination of various



nonessential services in all departments to include the Recreation Department and the
Department of Museums. During the year, we also plan to evaluate our employee expenses.
We plan to evaluate the reduction or elimination of employees by attrition whether it is by
resignation or retirement. Finally, we have included in the current year's budget, the use of
certain reserve funds. We think to the fullest extent possible the reserve funds should not be
used for normal operational expenses.” Councilman Jones stated that this is where the Council
did not do a good job of controlling its costs. He advised that on the positive side, the Council
eliminated the volunteer reception, combined with the County the Easter Egg hunt, and reduced
the number of Town vehicles being taken home. Councilman Jones pointed out that the Council
needs to review this regularly. He remarked that the cost of fuel and maintenance, although not
huge, can add up over a year's time. Councilman Jones stated that if an employee lives outside
the Town limits, taking a Town vehicle home is a big benefit. He advised that in speaking of
vehicles, the Town has almost 100 licensed vehicles. Councilman Jones advised that the cost of
insurance, maintenance, and operations can be a big expense. He commented that the use of
Town vehicles is on display daily and creates perceptions by Town citizens, good or bad.
Councilman Jones indicated that other areas mentioned in last year's memo, such as reducing
trash pickup from five to three days, and remarked that he just put that in; reducing brush pickup
from 12 months to a lesser schedule; and, reducing the number of days and hours that pools
are open, or open and close the pools based on the closing and opening of schools are some of
the things that the Council has discussed but has not done anything. Councilman Jones
remarked that in the 2010-2011 budget, the Town is not using reserves in general operation
areas, but they are having to use some reserves in the water and sewer side. He stated that
eventually, the Council should be able to get the water and sewer side balanced without the use
of reserves. Councilman Jones pointed out that reserves should only be used for capital outlay
and true emergencies. Councilman Jones advised that the Town’s reserves are $15 million, but
$5 million of those reserves is for the meals and lodging tax increases designated for the
Community Center debt collected before the center opened and before the Town started paying
the debt on the center. He noted that in keeping with the Council’s purpose of raising the
meals/lodging tax, this reserve amount should be used to reduce the Community Center debt at
some point. Councilman Jones remarked that finally, the largest expense is in personnel. He
advised that the Council needs to carefully evaluate positions, particularly when vacated
through retirement or resignation. He indicated that if the Council’s decision is to refill, the Town
should not do so until all the leave payments have been made, thereby eliminating double
expenses. Councilman Jones remarked that as the Town provides services, certain areas need
full time staff, but the use of part-time/contract personnel can help maintain services while
decreasing expenses. He advised that travel by Town staff for education or convention
purposes is another area that could produce savings, although not large, but the Town could
follow the State and ban all out of state overnight travel except for extraordinary reasons.
Councilman Jones summarized that in closing, Town operations are well managed, but the
Council/management need to remember that leadership requires them to set the example, lead
by their actions, and be able to say no. He advised that it is easy when saying yes, but the art of
leadership is being able to say no. Councilman Jones indicated that he voted yes on the budget.
Mayor Crewe thanked Councilman Jones for his cogent comments, and noted that the Council
appreciates them, and advised that the Council will take it to heart he is sure. He reiterated that
he did not mean to cut off the discussion by voting, and noted that he missed Councilman Jones
wanting to make his remarks. Mayor Crewe indicated that the budget is approved on second,
but not yet final, reading. He pointed out that final reading of the budget is scheduled for June
14, 2010.

RE: RESOLUTION — TELECABLE FRANCHISE

Mayor Crewe stated the next agenda item is to consider a resolution approving the transfer of
the telecable franchise to Shentel Cable. He advised that this resolution would transfer the
telecable franchise from JetBroadband to Shentel. Mayor Crewe inquired regarding the pleasure
of the Council and if he hears any motion regarding this resolution. A motion was made by Vice-
Mayor King to adopt the resolution approving the transfer of the telecable franchise to Shentel
Cable with the amendments to come later. The motion was seconded by Councilman Jones.
Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any discussion on the motion to approve the resolution
transferring the franchise for telecable and to negotiate changes at a later date after the transfer
is effective. There being none, the motion was approved with the following voting in favor and
there being no opposition: For: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline K. King, John W. Jones, Jr.,
William B. Weisiger, H. Judson Lambert. Against: None. Mayor Crewe advised Mr. Young that
the Council appreciates him attending the meeting and noted that the paperwork will follow this
action.



RE: SUBDIVISION — DEERFIELD PHASE I

Mayor Crewe stated the next agenda item is to consider the recommendation of the Planning
Commission regarding final approval for the request of HOPE, Incorporated for the subdivision
known as Deerfield, Phase Il, which is located off of Deerfield Lane, south of Route 11 in an R-1
Residential District. He advised that the Council has this before them with the recommendation
from the Planning Commission that it be approved with six stipulations including that the
subdivision be allowed with (1) final technical compliance with the Subdivision Ordinance and
the erosion and sediment control and stormwater management ordinance; (2) waiver of curb
and gutter be approved; (3) written commitment for the maintenance of the stormwater
management system for Phase Il be submitted to the Town; (4) a commitment for maintenance
for the green space be formalized, and Mayor Crewe noted that he would guess that this means
be in writing; (5) Approve the street names of London Lane and Nat Back Road; (6) 24-foot wide
streets would be allowed. A motion was made by Councilman Jones and seconded by
Councilman Lambert that the Council approve the recommendation of the Planning Commission
regarding final approval for the request of HOPE, Incorporated for the subdivision known as
Deerfield, Phase IlI, which is located off of Deerfield Lane, south of Route 11 in an R-1
Residential District with the following stipulations: (1) Final technical compliance with the
Subdivision Ordinance and erosion and sediment control and stormwater management
ordinances; (2) Approval is given for the waiver of curb and gutter; (3) A written commitment for
the maintenance of the stormwater management system for Phase Il of the subdivision shall be
submitted to the Town; (4) A commitment for maintenance of the green space shall be
formalized; (5) Approval is given to the street names, which include London Lane and Nat Back
Road; (6) Approval is given to the 24-foot street widths. Mayor Crewe indicated that the motion
is on the floor, and he is not cutting Mr. Kegley off, and the Council will be glad to hear from him
if he wishes to address the Council. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any discussion on the
motion to approve the recommendation of the Planning Commission to approve this subdivision.
Vice-Mayor King remarked that she just has one thing, and advised that she did not know if she
would want to state she lived on Nat Back Road. Mayor Crewe advised that she would if she
was a relative of Nat Back. Vice-Mayor King inquired if this is a person. Mayor Crewe stated that
is correct, and the roads are named for two people who were involved in some of the earlier
efforts and inquired of Mr. Kegley if that is correct. Mr. Kegley stated that is correct and
explained that Mr. Nat Back was a resident of Wytheville and now lives in Roanoke and is 103
years old. Vice-Mayor King noted that she did not mean anything negative by her remarks. She
remarked that she would not want someone to think it is like a gnat that flies around. Mayor
Crewe remarked that he agreed. Town Manager Sutherland inquired regarding the maintenance
of the proposed open space and inquired how Mr. Kegley proposes to do that, and remarked
that he knows Mr. Kegley advised that he would submit a letter. Mr. Kegley answered that he
was unclear about the formality of a letter, and inquired if it would be a letter addressed to the
Council stating that HOPE will maintain the green space forever. Town Manager Sutherland
stated that someone has to take care of the green space or it needs to be sold. Mr. Kegley
advised that he understands and as he expressed to Town Manager Sutherland in an e-malil
today, it is a legal lot size, and noted he thinks it is. Mayor Crewe inquired if Mr. Kegley is talking
about the green space lot. Mr. Kegley stated that is correct and advised that they will be working
with the current and the future residents who have asked for green space there to get their
partnership on this. Mr. Kegley indicated that he will write the letter and give it to the Town
Manager in the morning and bring it to him. Mayor Crewe inquired if there is any other
discussion on the motion. Councilman Weisiger inquired if the original Deerfield is the
subdivision that did the stormwater special design and inquired if Mr. Kegley is doing the same
design. Mr. Kegley answered that he is doing a modified design. He explained that the first 18
lots have bio-retention on each lot and 15/18 has worked really well, but three have been a
challenge. Mr. Kegley indicated that they have done work in the last month on three lots. He
explained that Phase Il will be a centralized or shared, larger bio-retention system so it will take
the burden off the individual homeowner and put it in one space. Councilman Weisiger advised
that he was wondering how this concept works. Mr. Kegley remarked that 15/18, they have
been really happy, whatever that percentage is. Mayor Crewe stated that the three that have
been problems are largely related to topography and soils and inquired if that is correct. Mr.
Kegley answered that it has been soils and runoff from a dirt pile that was standing out there
that was not managed as well as they should have managed it, and allowing clay to go from one
site to another to clog up the bio-retention area. Mayor Crewe inquired if there are any other
guestions, discussions, or comments. There being none, the motion was approved with the
following voting in favor and there being no opposition: For: Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Jacqueline
K. King, John W. Jones, Jr., William B. Weisiger, H. Judson Lambert. Against: None.



RE: MEMORIAL DAY CEREMONY

Vice-Mayor King stated she would like to remind everyone of the Memorial Day service starting
Sunday 1:00 p.m. in Withers Park. She noted that Dr. George Farrell will be the speaker, and he
is really excited about it.

Councilman Weisiger remarked that he has heard that Dr. Farrell is really good, too. Vice-Mayor
King stated that is correct, and he is thrilled. Mayor Crewe noted that Dr. Farrell is a nice man.

RE: RUN FOR THE WALL

Mayor Crewe stated he would remind everyone that Run For The Wall motorcycles will arrive at
Withers Park sometime around 4:00 p.m. on Wednesday. He noted that they hope there will be
a large crowd of people there and then, again, on Thursday morning when they have the
program with Spiller School. Mayor Crewe advised they will probably be in the park by 6:30 a.m.
Thursday morning, and they will leave about 9:30 a.m. or 10:00 a.m. Vice-Mayor King inquired if
Mayor Crewe will be in the front of the motorcyclists this time. Mayor Crewe answered that he
does not think so, and he thinks he will be toward the back. Vice-Mayor King stated she can
never find Mayor Crewe when they are all coming into the park. Mayor Crewe advised that they
had 500 motorcycles yesterday in Texas, and they do not know how many they will have when
they arrive in Wytheville. Vice-Mayor King inquired as to how far the motorcyclists will get today
and inquired if Mayor Crewe knew. Mayor Crewe answered that he would have to look and see,
but he thinks they are in Meridian, Mississippi, today, and tomorrow they will go to Chattanooga,
and Wednesday, they will go from Chattanooga to Wytheville. Vice-Mayor King inquired if Mayor
Crewe is meeting them in Chattanooga. Mayor Crewe stated that is what he is hoping to do. He
noted that Thursday, they go from Wytheville to Roanoke, and spend the night there, and they
will go from here to Bedford to the D-Day Memorial, and back to Roanoke, and then Friday
morning, they go straight from Roanoke to Washington, DC, and they will make it to
Washington, DC, early afternoon on Friday. Mayor Crewe explained that this where the two
routes come back together, the southern route and the central route, and combine again and go
into Washington, DC.

RE: ADJOURNMENT

There being no further business to be discussed, a motion was duly made, seconded, and
carried to adjourn the meeting (7:48 p.m.).

Trenton G. Crewe, Jr., Mayor

Sharon G. Corvin, Chief Deputy Clerk

G:\COUNCIL\Minutes\2010\Council Minutes 052410.docx

BACK



BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT

MAY 24, 2010

Later this evening on the agenda, the Council will consider, on second reading,
adoption of the budget for fiscal year 2010-2011. As required by law, a public
hearing with regard to the budget was conducted earlier this evening. The budget
is scheduled to be heard on third and final reading for adoption at the June 14
meeting of Council. The total budgeted amount under consideration for second
reading continues to be $16,332,905.00. Several line items within the budget
have been revised to more accurately reflect departmental appropriations. As
noted, however, the total budgeted amount remains the same. | would again note
that the budget does not include any real estate or personal property tax
increases, nor does it include any other increases in taxes or fees. When the
Budget Ordinance is considered later this evening, it would be the
recommendation of the Budget and Finance Committee that it be adopted on

second but not final reading.

The Town’s fiscal year 2009-2010 will end on June 30, 2010. As such, it is
necessary for the Treasurer to close the books for the fiscal year. To
accommodate the year-end closing procedures, our Committee would
recommend that the Treasurer provide the Council with a listing of all transfers to
be made within the current year’'s budget. These transfers should not change the
total budgeted amount for the current fiscal year on the general fund side but will
on the water and sewer side of the budget. Since the water and sewer fund

revisions will change the budget’s total, it is necessary that we conduct a public
1



hearing. We would recommend that the public hearing be scheduled for June 28,
2010. Additionally, we would request the Treasurer to prepare a report such that

an action could be taken by the Council at our June 28 meeting.

Jacqueline K. King

John W. Jones, Jr.

H:COUNCIL\BFCOMMIT.RPT\2010\BFMAY 24.doc

BACK



PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE REPORT

MAY 24, 2010

The Commonwealth Transportation Board will conduct a public hearing on Thursday,
June 3, 2010, at New River Community College beginning at 6:00 p.m. to receive
comments for projects that should be included in the Fiscal Year 2011-2016 Six-Year
Improvement Program. The Town annually provides input to the Department of
Transportation on those projects that we feel are key transportation issues for
Wytheville. Again this year, we want to emphasize that we have as a priority the
completion of Community Boulevard that would link Peppers Ferry Road and Lithia
Road. As the Council is aware, this is the section of roadway that runs in front of our
new Community Center and would also provide a much needed entrance to Wytheville
Community College. Also, we have noted, as a priority, improvements on Peppers
Ferry Road from a point where it intersects Interstate 77 eastwardly to the corporate
limit. This is a highly traveled section of roadway and widening and realignment of this
section of roadway would be beneficial to the large volumes of traffic going to Progress
Park. Through the years, and again this year, we will also identify a number of other
transportation projects that would be beneficial to Wytheville. Unfortunately, there is
not sufficient funding for the Department of Transportation to commence our top
priority projects. We would note that we do think it is worthwhile to include in our
remarks to the Commonwealth Transportation Board our endorsement of the efforts by
the Commonwealth Railroad Board to provide passenger service to Southwest

Virginia.



We would request that the Town Manager submit these projects to the Commonwealth
Transportation Board for their consideration. Additionally, there is on file, in the Town
Manager's office, a copy of the input to be provided to the Department of

Transportation that is available to anyone who would like to review it.

We had reported, previously, that the Town had received loan and grant funds from
Rural Development to install a new 20-inch water line that is the final connection
between the Town and the New River Regional Water Authority. A large segment of
this line will be installed in Main Street. We have considered that while this
construction is occurring, this may be an opportune time to perform certain other street
improvements. Our Committee is considering preliminary designs of certain street
enhancements and improvements from a point on Main Street at 6" Street eastwardly
to its intersection with Interstate 81. In the downtown area, there are certain electrical
conduits that are needed to serve the street lighting. A number of the electrical circuits
in the downtown area have failed, and the inclusion of new conduits in this area would
enhance our ability to improve the lighting in the downtown area. From a point near
11" Street eastwardly to Withers Road, we are considering certain lane changes and
landscaping improvements in the existing center lane. All of these design concepts are
very preliminary in nature at this point, but, hopefully, we can have a more refined
design schematic in the very near future. Assuming that we can, in fact, develop a plan
that would enhance this section of Main Street, we would suggest that we pursue other
Rural Development loan and grant funding. There is yet available certain stimulus
money for which an application could be made. Hopefully, we will have additional

information on this proposed project in the very near future.



William B. Weisiger

H. Judson Lambert

HACOUNCIL\PWCOMMIT.RPT\2010\PWMAY24.doc

BACK



	Monday, June 14, 2010

	Text1: BACK


